
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

31 December 2018 
 

TO MEMBERS OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - ENVIRONMENT & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee on 

Tuesday, 8th January, 2019 at 6.30 pm 
in the Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 

Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Judith Skinner 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Yvonne Stevens 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Peter Bedford, Colin Brotherton, 

Anton Dani, Jonathan Noble, Barrie Pierpoint, Sue Ransome, 
Stephen Raven and Stephen Woodliffe 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 

PART 1 - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

B.   MINUTES                                                                                       (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

C.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Thursday 3rd January 2019. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 

 
1   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POSITION STATEMENT               (Pages 11 - 22) 

 

 A report by the Economic Development Manager 
 
 

2   WORK PROGRAMME                                                                    (Pages 23 - 24) 
 

 (For Members to note/discuss the Committee’s current work programme) 
 

 
 
Notes: 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Telephone Number 01205 
314226.    email:  karen.rist@boston.gov.uk  
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify as soon as possible 
giving the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be attending the meeting as their 
substitute. 
 
Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 
 
 
 

Emergency Procedures 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 

via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - ENVIRONMENT & 
PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

8 November 2018 

Present: Councillor Judith Skinner (Chairman), Councillor Yvonne Stevens (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Alison Austin, Colin Brotherton, Jonathan Noble, 
Barrie Pierpoint, Sue Ransome, Stephen Woodliffe and David Brown 

 
In attendance:  
 

Officers –  
Head of Environmental Operations, Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer and 
Democratic Services Officer 

 
105   MINUTES 

 

With the agreement of the committee the Chairman signed the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on the 4 September 2018 

 
106   APOLOGIES 

 

Apologies for absence were tabled from Councillor Peter Bedford with Councillor Alison 
Austin substituting.  Apologies were also tabled from Councillors Tom Ashton and 
Stephen Raven with no substitute member. 

 
107   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 

No declarations of interest were noted 

 
108   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 

No questions were tabled 

 
109   STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY CONSULTATION - BOSTON ALTERNATIVE 

ENERGY FACILITY 
 

The Deputy Chief Executive addressed the committee and prior to presenting the report, 
referenced a list of questions Cllr Alison Austin had submitted to the applicant, during a 
one to one session she had held with them.  Those questions and answers had kindly 
been circulated for the meeting as the Deputy Chief Executive felt they would be of 
benefit to the meeting and thanked Councillor Austin for providing them 
 
Presenting the report, members were advised that there were only two aspects for their 
consideration within the report tabled:  the first was the statement of the consultation 
whereby members were asked to consider if it was reasonable, and if not, to identify any 
consultation areas which may have been missed. (Members were referenced to the 
previous Boston Barrier Consultation which was also an NSIP project and asked to 
identify any issues which arose when communities had been engaged at the enquiry 
stage.   
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item B.



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 November 2018 
 

 
 
They were further reminded that PINS advised that as much information be sought up-
front in the pre-application part of the process as that was the point where influence on 
the final project would be submitted to the DCO).  Members were asked to consider how 
they would engage with their own residents and the wider borough in terms in the 
adequacy of the Statement of Consultation. 
The second part required consideration as to whether or not the information provided 
was sufficient to clearly identify what the proposal and structure was.  Boston Borough 
Council was acting as a consultee in the process because the project was of public 
interest due to its scale and size and the potential outcomes.  Once committee had 
commented, Cabinet would also be approached to seek their views.  Further stages of 
consultation would take place, but the report tabled was only the initial stage and the 
role of committee was purely to identify if the consultation process in place was 
adequate.   Members were referred to paragraph 1.4 of the report which set out the 
purpose of why there was a Statement of Community Consultation and also to the 
appendix which was set out in greater detail.  They were asked to reference the actual 
proposal which was detailed on page 23, and then advised that paragraph 3.2 provided 
a summary of what the developers were intent on doing: paragraph 3.3 identifying 
outstanding information which need to be captured.  Consultation responses from 
Council Officer’s and from the Environment Agency were also provided. 
   
Summarising her opening overview of the report the Deputy Chief Executive suggested 
committee address the two aspects separately in their deliberation, with consideration 
firstly to the proposed consultation process and identify missing areas, followed by the 
second task of the report which was to identify any missing information 
 
The Portfolio Holder interjected at this point in the proceedings and stated he felt that 
the round of exhibitions which had already taken place would not be the last and he 
hoped further consultation in village halls and drop in centres would be taking place: he 
stated he felt confident that there would be enough effort put into consultation. 
  
The Deputy Chief Executive concurred with the Portfolio Holder stressing to committee 
that this was their opportunity to articulate what they expected to see, including 
consultations at all village halls.  The Portfolio Holder responded that he also hoped that 
hub for a visitor centre would be provided to allow members of the public to drop in and 
view the proposal and ask questions. 
 
(At this point in the proceedings Councillor Alison Austin asked that it be recorded that she 
was both the County Councillor and Ward Member for the proposed site area.  She stated 
the only reason she had been afforded a one to one session had been due to her being 
unable to attend the scheduled member consultation, due to a long standing commitment 
elsewhere.  As such she had needed the one to one to ensure she was fully aware of the 
project, ahead of it being made public to her constituents) 
 

Committee deliberation followed with the following concerns, comments and questions 
being raised in respect of the report tabled.    (A summary of suggestions in respect of 
the two key areas for response and for the Deputy Chief Officer to take forward, is 
attached to the minute). 
 
 
 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 November 2018 

 
 
 

A member voiced concern that Alternative Use Boston Project Ltd (AUBP) had only 
been incorporate in 2017 with no accounts being available.  Whilst the project plan had 
been submitted there was no financial plan which the member stressed, would have 
been provided with any established business.  Further concern noted use of public 
money and the impact on the public purse the development would have. The same 
member also noted concerns about hazardous waste travelling through the town via 
road and how it would be controlled.  Concluding the member also noted the size of 
project and asked if eventually, overseas waste would need to be sourced to maintain 
the output resulting in a loss of control of the waste. 
In response the Deputy Chief Executive referenced the member to page 4 of the list of 
questions circulated by Cllr Austin which noted road haulage and identified the 
hazardous substances that would be carried on the roads. The member was advised 
that should the project be approved by the Secretary of State it would be a highly 
regulated facility with the Environment Agency having full control through an operating 
permit: a permit would not be issued until they evidenced sound construction.  The origin 
of waste was not something that could be controlled by the Council as it was a system 
regulated by the Environment Agency.  What the Council could ask for would be greater 
clarity in respect of the nature of the waste.  Noting the comments in respect of public 
money being used, members were reassured that the Council was making no 
contribution to the project and how the project would be financed was a private matter. 
The Company AUBP had been created solely to deal with the project which was 
common practice in such large projects, once the project was concluded the company 
would likely be dissolved. 
 
The Portfolio Holder stated that if possible, the applicant could be encouraged to provide 
a new link road from the football stadium roundabout, across the fields directly to the 
Marsh Lane area.  It would be of benefit to the not benefit the new facility and the 
businesses and homes in that area.  
Referencing the technical information within the report a member questioned the amount 
of homes that would be powered by the supply of electricity generated.  He noted the 
general production of power was 102 megawatts gross with 22 megawatts being used to 
power the facility.  Referencing the intended 185.000 homes to be powered the member 
felt it to be ambitious and unreasonable amount.  The member further voiced strong 
concerns about the toxins the site would create, citing nitrous oxide, hydrogen dioxide 
and sulphur dioxide and even possibly hydrogen cyanide. The report provided no detail 
on any emissions and it was unknown what components were likely to be emitted from 
the process and whether they were dangerous.  The site was in a residential area and 
the information in respect of emissions should be clear, along with full details of any 
hazards and also how much carbon dioxide would be produced annually bearing in mind 
current issues in respect of reducing the carbon footprint.  Furthermore there was no 
information advising if medical waste would be processed on the site, nor any detail on 
the cost of the electricity to the National Grid. 
Responding the Deputy Chief Executive advised she had been checking figures and 
noted 1 megawatt was a million watts so the report showed 1 megawatt could provide 
electricity for 164 homes per year. Furthermore she reiterated that committee were not 
making a decision; the report was not a planning application but an initial informative 
seeking the committee’s comments only on its consultation process and on the 
information provided 
 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 November 2018 
 

 
 
Noting a point of clarification The Head of Environmental Operations confirmed that the 
fuel used to fuel the gasification process was household derived, it was what was in the 
green bin for Boston residents (known as RDF – Refuse derived fuel). Members were 
further advised that the process was one of gasification and not incineration as some 
members had stated. The waste was not burnt like in Lincoln Energy from Waste facility, 
it was technically a different process and members should refrain from using the term 
incineration and use the term gasification 
 
A further member questioned what experience and expertise the applicant had in 
operating such a facility.  He also sought reassurance that the company were competent 
at what they did as he felt that the report did not demonstrate proof of any similar 
experience elsewhere.  The members also voiced concern at a lack of any advice in the 
report of any issues or problems experienced at any similar facilities along with a lack of 
a case of safety which should have been provided for such a dangerous site. 
Advice was provided that Royal Haskoning were an experienced developer and also 
that AUBP who were the promoter had been actively engaged in industrial development 
in Boston since 2004. 
 
Stating he was not as concerned as fellow members and suggesting that committee 
have more faith, a Councillor voiced support of the project, stating that Boston was a 
growing town.  He stated the primary issue was that of consultation and referencing 
paragraph 6.42 of the report, suggested that the statement was ambiguous with the 
words ‘proposed to do’ and that the matter of the translation should be done 
automatically with the material being placed where ethnic minority groups congregated.    
 
Furthermore he stated that legislation in respect of such facilities was rigorous and he 
doubted any developer could wittingly pollute neighbouring areas.    He felt reassured 
that only UK waste from Green Bins would be used with no overseas waste being 
processed and also that the goods would be transported by river and not by road.  
Addressing concerns about a lack of experience by the developer, the member noted 
page 8 of the report which stated that the developer AUBP – had indeed been involved 
with similar plant projects, not least in selling a power station to Aviva. 
 
Referencing the Pollution Air Control system which was supposed to be in place a 
member voiced concern that information about it was not detailed and that further 
knowledge on how the system actually works was required 
 
A member voiced her concern that there had been no link to signposting of other 
documents which were available in respect of the overall project which she felt would 
have answered a lot more questions for members and offered more reassurance and 
encouraged members to have a look if they had time to do so. The member further 
noted the volume of consultation exercises undertaken during the previous large project 
within the town and stated that no matter how many strands of public consultation were 
provided, it was not possible to force people to attend or become engaged with the 
project.  The member suggested issuing of information on more social media strands be 
used to encourage younger people to be made aware. 
 
 
 

Page 4



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 November 2018 

 

 
 
Responding the Deputy Chief Executive once again stated that committee were 
consulting purely on the consultation document at this point in the proceedings.  She 
noted if a 220 page document issued generally people were less likely to read the fully 
document as against part thereof.  Equally part of actual engagement in the consultation 
process was not to overload people but to focus on the requisite part of the document as 
required by the developer.   
 
The Portfolio Holder then added that once the news was released further media 
promotion would be needed in respect of the significant job creation opportunities the 
development would create.  Whilst the initial construction would require up to 400 
workers which would include specialist workers from outside the local area, once 
completed the site itself would create between 80 / 100 posts and of course there would 
also be the secondary layer of employment with the local supply chains.  The 
development would require product; equipment and servicing along with other things 
and local companies should be afforded the opportunity to tender for such contracts.  It 
needed to be recognised that such a new development would also attract new business. 
 
At this point in the proceedings the Deputy Chief Executive whilst agreeing the points 
raised were important, asked members to focus on the reasons for the report and to 
address the proposed consultation process. 
 
 

 A member who stated he felt the consultation proposed was not very imaginative 
and suggested that all 6th form pupils at the senior schools within the borough be 
consulted.  He noted that by the time of the delivery of the site, many of the said 
pupils would be working and living within the town/borough.  It was important to 
consult with the students not only to gain a different perspective but they would 
probably discuss the subject with their parents thus providing a further strand for 
the consultation. 

 
 A number of members agreed that they wanted to see something innovative in 

the consultation throughout the lifetime of the project:  whilst traditional social 
media was good, new ways of consulting were needed to be sourced to engage a 
younger demographic.   It was agreed that more research into technology to 
identify how today’s modern companies worked was needed with Boston 
communications and that the Council itself needed to signpost events and run its 
own articles to keep abreast of the consultation events to capture local people. 

 
 The Chairman asked for regular briefings at each stage of the NSIP with a 

presentation to members to allow information to be provided at the right point.  
This would ensure all members were able to update and advise their constituents. 

 
 Referencing paragraph 6.42 of the report a member suggested that the statement 

was ambiguous with the words ‘proposed to do’ and that the matter of the 
translation should be done automatically with the translated material being placed 
where ethnic minority groups congregated to try to reach those groups who 
proved hard to consult with. 

 
 

Page 5



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 November 2018 
 

 
 

 A member noted the recent mail drop identified in paragraph 6.4.4 which covered 
a five kilometre radius of the site and questioned why it had not taken place in 
Wyberton. Another member advised that some residents in that area had 
received the mail drop and concern was raised that not all residents may have 
been contacted and it was agreed that the developer be made aware of the 
concern. It was further agreed to extend the radius of the consultation area from 5 
kilometres to between 7 – 10 kilometres this would enable other wards within the 
borough which would be subject to impact by the development in a variety of 
ways – road haulage; construction vehicles and noise plus other, to be able to 
comments 

 
 Referencing the consultation events noted under 9.3 of the report members 

asked if additional locations could be added.  It was agreed that Rochford Tower 
Hall in Fishtoft; Wyberton Parish Hall, Trinity Church Hall and Kirton Town Hall all 
be added to the list of venues for further consultation events. 

 
 Members further agreed that the additional ‘drop-in’ centres could be used for the 

pre-app consultation allowing consultation to be locality based to capture local 
feelings and then noted that should the Secretary of State accept the application 
then a hub would be developed to provide a pool of information available for 
people to drop-in and ask questions.  It was suggested that the developer may 
erect a building on the perimeter of the site for security purposes which could also 
act as a hub but as any intent for a hub was unknown, and having seen how 
successful the hub for the Barrier project had been, committee agreed that they 
recommend of a community hub be provided. 

   
 The Head of Environmental Operations further added that the household waste 

recycling centre in Boston could be used as an information site for data on the 
development.  The site was heavily used and could offer an alternative site for 
promotion / distribution of information for the project. 

  
 Referencing the consultation process for the Barrier a member suggested that the 

developer be asked to liaise with the EA in respect of lessons learnt by them, 
during their own consultation process on the Barrier with local people.  It was 
recommended that an approach be made to see if they may be prepared to share 
feedback on their experience 

 
 
Having agreed the above points in respect of the consultation process committee moved 
to identify outstanding information it felt was missing and needed to be captured to 
further expand the consultation: 
 

 Clarification of the number of homes the site would power was required as a 
member felt the information and conversions to be questionable. 

 
 A breakdown of the expected pollutants from gasification was needed to identify 

any emissions expected.  Advice on where the pollutants would go / how they 
would be gotten rid of was also requested. 

 

Page 6



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 November 2018 

 

 
 

 How much CO2 would be generated from the site and would the level fluctuate? 
 

 Would any medical waste ever be processed at the site and if so what control 
measures would be in place for it? 

 
 Would there be any charge for Electricity to National Grid and if so what would it 

be? 
 Could a list of stakeholders be provided? 

 
 Further expansion around both light pollution and air pollution was required to 

enable residents to understand any likely impact. 
 

 Advice on where the ash pellets end up once they leave the site and also on what 
they are used for. 

 
 
General comments outside of the consultation and information feedback are noted 
below -  

 
 A member asked for enquiries to be made to see what, if any, funding streams 

were available for local communities / groups in respect of mitigating the effects 
of the development on the area.  Information to be provided and the Council to 
offer assistance in order to make the application as best as possible to help them 
get the monies.  The construction period would be long and there would be 
inconvenience to residents. 
 

 The Deputy Chief Executive to liaise with both the Environmental Health and 
Planning departments to ascertain what impact and harm the construction might 
cause and at what radius from the actual site. 

 
 Local residents / businesses should be made aware of any tendering 

opportunities for the development with details made available of how to approach 
the developer. 

 
 A member stated they had had a chance meeting with a local company where the 

MD stated they had already been having talks with the developer for many 
months about the product they would be manufacturing for the developer.   

 
 The inclusion of a link road from the roundabout direct to the site should be 

pursued as the benefits whilst predominantly benefitting the developer for access 
to the site would also benefit local residents and businesses.  
 

 Could soft landscaping and planting be incorporated alongside the hard 
landscaping with larger specimens that would establish quicker and provide 
screening to integrate the site into the landscape. 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 November 2018 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDED:    That due to the significant volume of response, draft minutes to be 
produced and issued to committee members for their consideration.  The Deputy Chief 
Executive to be delegated powers in consultation with the Chairman Councillor Judith 
Skinner to agree the final draft of the minutes and the official response and then issue 
the document for Cabinet without the need to reconvene the committee to agree the 
final response.  
 
For information: 
When the Chairman signs the master copy of the full set of minutes for this meeting, at 
the next schedule meeting on the committee on the 8 January 2019, the hard copy for 
this particular minute for the consultation, will have been signed off by the Chairman and 
the Deputy Chief Executive. 
 
 
 
110   WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR LINCOLNSHIRE 

 
The Head of Environmental Operations presented the report to the committee providing 
a short introduction to the Strategy which he hoped would now have become familiar to 
members.  Development of the waste management strategy for Lincolnshire had been a 
significant task which the waste partnership had been working on for well over a year.  
The Strategy would provide the cornerstone for future working arrangements in the 
County influencing the way that Lincolnshire Waste Partnership worked and the 
landscape of waste disposal and collection arrangements across the county.  It would 
impact each and every resident of both Boston and Lincolnshire and shape how the 
County Council as a waste disposal authority along with the seven district councils 
would work together to manage the 360000 tonnes of household waste produced in 
Lincolnshire each year.  The vision sought to ensure that the Lincolnshire Waste 
Partners would work together to protect the environment by delivering sustainable waste 
management services which drove best value across the County.  Underpinning the 
vision were 10 core objectives along with an action plan to steer the delivery.  Public 
feedback wholeheartedly supported the objectives as being right for the people of 
Lincolnshire and the action plan would provide the mechanism through which progress 
reporting would be provided to, and monitored by, the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership.  
The strategy set out challenging objectives which would require members of all 
authorities to make difficult choices over the coming year.  The reason being they had to 
fundamentally challenge the way waste services were currently provided to residents 
because of the challenges approaching us.  These included the Government’s Waste 
Strategy which was imminent, the impact of Brexit on future waste policy was uncertain, 
however what was clear was recycling rates had declined, more residual waste was 
being produced by households, the population was growing and recycling the correct 
materials was complicated plus the Energy from Waste Facility was approaching 
capacity.  Lobbying of Government and food manufacturers would be crucial to meeting 
these challenges, residents had a critical role to play and would need the support of this 
council and its members to make a difference:  all of which needed to be achieved 
against a backdrop of reducing public resources. 
 
 

Page 8



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 November 2018 

 

 
There were 147 responses to the public consultation as identified in appendix B of the 
report and changes had been made to the strategy to reflect the feedback.   Key themes 
had emerged many of which reflected the feedback by members of the Environment and 
Performance committee which included education and communication to residents, 
harmonising collection methods and waste streams across the county to make it easy to 
do the right thing.  It was explicit in the feedback from the public that we seek to manage 
costs but not to the detriment of the environment. 
 
The final document included an initial action plan which was absent from the draft 
version. Inclusion of the action plan with the strategy was a direct result of public 
feedback and although a work in progress, it provided members with an indication of the 
focus of work for the partnership over the next few months. 
 
Member comment and questioning followed which included: 
(officer response is noted in italics) 
 

Referencing stickers on page 152 of the report a member questioned if the stickers had 
been rolled out in Boston as they did appear to have been in East Lindsey. 
The Head of Environmental operations confirmed that stickers had gone out in the 
Boston area, stating it was a project that had been delivered as part of national recycling 
week in September with the plan that all of the districts would apply the stickers during 
that week.  He confirmed he could not comment on the actions of East Lindsey District 
Council.   
 

When would there be uniformity of recycling across the County, instead of the individual 
rules which currently applied. 
The portfolio holder confirmed work was underway in the Partnership as part of the 
strategy action plan, seeking to harmonise kerbside recycling across all councils with the 
county. 
   
 

RECOMMENDED:   That the Environment and Performance Committee endorse the 
Waste Management Strategy for Lincolnshire and recommend to Cabinet at its meeting 
on the 28 November 2018 that the said strategy be formally adopted by the Council 
(subject to the Strategy in the same form being formally adopted by all the waste 
collection authorities in Lincolnshire). 
 
 
111   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members noted the report and the Chairman confirmed that following a recent FOI by 
the Boston Disability Forum to Lincolnshire County Council, that the Council had been 
advised that a draft Policy for ‘A’ Boards should be available to be tabled to his 
committee in March or April of 2019.   Confirmation had also been received by the Head 
of Place and Space that he would be able to provide a full update report on the Pilgrim 
20/20 activity at the committee’s last meeting in April. 
 
Planning of the work programme for 2019 / 2020 had begun with two items which had 
been raised in the current committee year, scheduled onto that work programme.  The 
scheduling was to enable thorough and detailed reports to be prepared. 
 

Page 9



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 November 2018 
 

 
 
The Head of Environmental Operations reminded members of an invitation to all 
members’ to attend a visit to the Energy from Waste facility in Lincoln on the 23 
November 2018. 
 
A request was made that pressure be applied to Lincolnshire County Council in respect 
of the ‘A’ Boards report to ensure as far as possible that it was received by the 
incumbent committee.   It was noted by the Chairman at this point that certain ‘A’ Boards 
had already been moved from a central location within the town.  Officers advised that 
this had been due to additional enforcement resources being deployed by Lincolnshire 
County Council under their current policy regime and that they would make contact with 
the county to see if the ‘A’ Boards report could be expedited. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.30 pm 
 

Page 10



 

REPORT TO: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY – ENVIRONMENT AND 
PERFORMANCE

DATE: 8 JANUARY 2019

SUBJECT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POSITION STATEMENT

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR MICHAEL COOPER

REPORT AUTHOR: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

EXEMPT REPORT? NO

SUMMARY 
This report provides an update to the Environment and Performance Committee on 
economic development activity defined through the economic development annual 
rolling action plan that sets out a framework for continued support to enable our 
business community to grow, develop and invest and to nurture entrepreneurship.  

To enable to the plan to remain responsive, appropriate and fit for purpose and to 
take into account any changes in economic profile or conditions it will be subject to 
annual review. 

The economic development plan has a clear vision, ‘to create a strong, successful 
and resilient economy that works for all by positioning the borough as a destination 
of choice for investing, working, living and visiting’ which influences the 4 key 
objectives as set out in the action plan.   

These objectives are closely aligned to the strategic Prosperity priority set out in the  
Council Plan 2016/17 – 2019/20, which delivers a clear sense of direction and an 
overall open for business vision for the borough.  

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That this committee: 

i) Considers the progress made against the rolling economic development 
action plan 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

Page 11

Agenda Item 1



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
Delivering economic growth is a major priority for the Council and the rolling action 
plan is key to underpinning coherent sustainable economic development 
throughout the borough. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

None 

Page 12



REPORT 

1.  INTRODUCTION 

 1.1  This report provides an update to the Environment and Performance  
Committee on economic development activity defined through the economic 
development annual rolling action plan. 

 1.2  The economic development rolling action plan seeks to address the economic 
issues and exploit the opportunities both internal and external to the borough. 

 1.3  The action plan is a fluid document that will be subject to annual review to 
ensure that it remains fit for purpose and up to date. This will allow the plan to 
be more resilient and take into account any changes in economic profile or 
conditions. 

 1.4  The council leads on taking this plan forward and through a partnership 
approach provides a leadership role in promoting economic development 
throughout the borough, addressing the skills needs of local employers and 
individuals, ensuring that local needs and priorities inform both the plan and 
with certain policy development.  

 1.5  Significant amount of intervention is already being delivered to underpin growth 
by different council services including Building Control, Development 
Management, Licensing, Forward Plans and our Housing teams. The annual 
economic development action plan supports this activity to maximise economic 
benefits and accelerate growth.  

 1.6  It is with the council working as one that the borough has seen significant 
economic growth over the last two years with business investment in excess of 
£60million, not including housing investment. A further £20million worth of 
investment leveraged through the commercial elements of the Quadrant, Kirton 
Dist. Park, Sutterton roundabout and other parts of the borough.  

 1.7  This investment has seen job growth well in excess of 200 and is continuing to 
grow which is again clearly demonstrated in our Gross Value Added (GVA) over 
the past two years which now stands at £1.4billion. 

 1.8  Over the last year has we have also been listening and taking temperature 
checks of issues relating to business growth and especially around the Science, 
Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM) skills agenda. Therefore, as local 
influencers we are now working collaboratively across both the business sector 
and the education system at all levels and delivering an initiative called Primary 
Engineer, which as the name indicates is aimed at primary school children but 
also covers secondary and early years.  

 1.9  Primary Engineer project is a unique piece of work for the council to undertake 
and is gaining recognition from nationally important businesses including 
Network Rail, EngineeringUK, National Grid, Anglian Water, Beeswax Dyson 

Page 13



Farms as well as a host of local businesses.  Delivering skills initiatives in 
partnership with business and education in a coherent and joined up way will 
have a major impact across the borough in terms of economic resilience, raising 
aspirations of our young people and give confidence to business that we are 
listening to their concerns. 

1.10 The council is clearly demonstrating its role in ‘place shaping’ by using its   
influence, resources and powers through the emerging South East Lincolnshire 
Local Plan to develop the borough as a location of choice 

1.11  Again over the last two years which we have data from the ONS 2015 and 2016 
we have seen a net increase (birth minus business deaths) of 116 new 
businesses. 

1.12 The plan provides scope for enhanced partnership and collaboration, creativity 
and innovation to deliver the right conditions for continued sustainable 
economic growth and well-being. Also, by creating an annual action plan allows 
the flexibility for new initiatives to be developed in response to future 
opportunities, issues and as seem most recently economic shocks in equal 
measure. 

1.13 The economic development priorities set out within the plan have been 
developed creating a synergy with the Council Plan 2016/17 – 2019/20 and the 
emerging South East Lincolnshire Local Plan. 

2.   TAKING THIS PLAN FORWARD 

   2.1 The remainder of this report seeks to highlight the progress made in delivering 
borough-wide economic development objectives as identified in the action plan. 

  2.2  Activity set out within the priorities below is intended to nurture economic well-
being for our local residents and reduce barriers for business growth.  The 
council’s economic development service has a major impact on local people by 
facilitating economic growth and competitiveness of the borough’s economy 
which is paramount in raising the aspirations and prosperity of our whole 
community. 

  2.3 The council rightly oversees the implementation of the action plan, but it also 
acknowledges that to achieve and deliver the economic vision ‘to create a 
strong, successful and resilient economy that works for all by positioning 
the borough as a destination of choice for investing, working, living and 
visiting’ there is a need to further develop a cohesive and coherent partnership 
of public and voluntary sectors working together as stakeholders of the plan.  

  2.4 However, these partnerships are not just confined to the borough’s boundary. 
With future plans, the council will look to develop mutually beneficial 

Page 14



partnerships, including those in the private sector to exploit strategic economic 
opportunities. 

   2.5 Delivering strong leadership and using the Council Plan 2016/17 - 2019/20 as 
the golden thread the plan embraces the responsibility for driving economic 
growth, prosperity and well-being for both our business and resident 
communities. 

   2.6 The Borough of Boston long-term success will continue to depend upon 
remaining an attractive location for international, national and indigenous 
investment and therefore the first priority (1.0) aims to ensure continued 
investment by promoting the borough as an ideal business location for inward 
investment. 

  

1.0 Promote and Support inward investment into the borough

Acti
on 
No.

Project Outcome Progress against project

1.1 Continue to broker 
relationships with 
Department for 
International Trade through 
strengthened links with 
Greater Lincolnshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership 
(GLLEP)

Strong 
international 
proposition that 
supports 
increased 
international 
investment 
opportunities

Working closer with commercial agents 
and the Department for International 
Trade (DIT) resulted what, once phase 
3 works are complete will be a £22 
million investment by Irish hatchery 
company Annyella Chicks. From this 
site the company will produce over 
2.5million chicks per week, creating 
over 100 new jobs.
The council is in ongoing dialog with 
Parkinson Harness Technology (PHT) 
and their new parent company DHOOT 
Industries from India. We are working 
with PHT to deliver options on larger 
premises to enable continued growth in 
Boston.                                              
The council is also in close dialogue 
with two other inward investment 
enquires and at this stage are 
confidential

1.2 Develop an inward 
investment plan to reflect a 
more targeted approach 

Increased 
investment

Part of this work is around a focused 
marketing campaign to improve and 
raise awareness through social media 
channels like Twitter and LinkedIn

1.3 Development of a 
marketing campaign to 
promote investment 
opportunities

Positive 
coverage of 
the borough as 
a location of 
first choice 
through 
increased 
investment

As part of reiterating our Open for 
Business message and to enable us to 
talk more readily to the business 
community inside and outside of the 
borough we have developed a 
marketing campaign with cross cutting 
themes that clearly set out our position 
and one where the business community 
understand and can connect with our 
priorities.

1.0 Promote and Support inward investment into the borough

Page 15



  2.7  The Council values the importance of a thriving and sustainable economy that 
supports and nurtures businesses to start up and grow. Priority 2.0 looks to 
support that agenda by encouraging greater interaction that will contribute to 
thriving local economy. 

1.4 With partners promote 
available employment sites 
and commercial premises 
with the development of 
marketing packs

Increased 
access to 
employment and 
development 
sites that 
supports the 
needs of future 
business growth

Continue to have regular meetings with 
local commercial agents and more 
regional agents on current activity and 
future marketing opportunities.   This 
enables agents to be better versed on 
the most up to date ONS profiles and 
statistics.

1.5 Delivery of ‘soft landing’ 
tools that support an 
aftercare programme for 
new and recent inward 
investment

Effective 
coordination of 
a positive and 
proactive 
‘Open for 
Business’ 
message and 
support

Working closely with business support 
partners like Federation of Small 
Business (FSB) and Business 
Lincolnshire on effective business 
support activities to enable the 
business to access suitable 
information, advice and guidance to be 
successful in the borough.

1.6 Promotion of Boston’s 
commercial sites, Land 
and retail opportunities

Greater 
awareness of 
the growth and 
investment 
opportunities

Working closely with Burney Group on 
the commercial sites regarding the 
Quadrant to reiterate our vision and 
growth plans to companies like 
Travelodge, Costa, Greggs , etc. Also 
monthly meetings with other local and 
regional commercial agents with a view 
in the coming months to set up an 
agents and developers forum to better 
engage and promote the borough as a 
place to invest.

1.0 Promote and Support inward investment into the borough1.0 Promote and Support inward investment into the borough

2.0 Support business development & growth of new and existing businesses

Acti
on 
No.

Project Outcome Progress against project

2.1 Develop an integrated 
business support service 
that utilises all BBC 
external facing service 
teams to deliver the ‘Open 
for Business’ priority

A more joined 
up approach 
that delivers a  
coherent 
message to the 
business 
community 
(existing and 
new)

This work is currently going on to 
establish a group of service areas 
leads to enable better information 
gathering and dissemination.

2.0 Support business development & growth of new and existing businesses

Page 16



2.2 Work in partnership with 
the Local Enterprise 
Partnership/BL/CofC and 
FSB to develop funding 
opportunities that support 
growth and investment

Increased 
investment in 
infrastructure 
to enable 
growth and 
create support 
opportunities 
for local 
business

We work closely with the LEP and 
Business Lincolnshire who are the 
main conduit for government funding 
ensuring that our business community 
are kept fully informed of all available 
funding streams. Over £3million of LEP 
funding to support housing growth and 
an approximate £4million for business 
growth

2.3 Support businesses and 
partners with initiatives that 
improve and enhance the 
skills of the workforce and 
new entrants into the world 
of work

A more 
sustainable 
and successful 
economy with 
fewer issues 
relating to 
recruitment

Working closely with Boston College to 
establish a centre of excellence around 
engineering and digital technologies 
within the workplace. Meetings already 
held with directors from Anglian Water 
and Network Rail to better understand 
the future needs and requirements of 
like minded industries.

2.4 Continue to meet with the 
business community to 
enable a better and more 
informed understanding of 
issues, challenges and 
opportunities where the 
council and partners can 
intervene to create a 
destination of first choice

Greater 
awareness and 
intelligence of 
the boroughs 
business 
environment 

This is an ongoing piece of work and 
has been welcomed by the business 
community over the last year. As part of 
interacting with the business 
community is the introduction of 
strategic leadership meetings which 
take place between the Leader of the 
Council, Chief Executive and the 
Economic Development manager. 
These meetings enable a greater 
understanding of business concerns 
and opportunities and where the local 
authority can make interventions to 
support. 

2.5 Explore with the business 
community, schools and 
colleges projects that link 
schools with business

Greater 
interaction 
across the 
world of work 
and eduction 
providers with 
increased 
employment 
growth and 
reduction of 
‘brain drain’ 
culture 

The development of the Science, 
Technology, Engineering and Maths 
(STEM) Primary Engineer programme 
across all tiers of the borough’s 
education system and delivered in 13 
Primary and 3 Secondary Schools with 
early years provision starting in 
January. Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Maths 

2.0 Support business development & growth of new and existing businesses2.0 Support business development & growth of new and existing businesses

Page 17



2.6 Work with partners to 
maximise the opportunities 
and benefits of Brexit 

Increased 
support to 
enable the 
local business 
community 
make best use 
of 
opportunities 
created by 
Brexit

On-going conversations with local 
businesses around potential impacts 
and the opportunities of Brexit and how 
they are preparing. Key messages are 
about the uncertainty about the 
continued access to EU workers as 
well as customs arrangements and 
lengthy boarder checks on non-tariff 
products. We are working with the FSB 
to monitor and inform on potential 
opportunities around Brexit for our local 
business community.

2.7 Improve support for rural 
businesses and 
businesses in rural 
locations through 
connectivity to super fast 
broadband 

Increased 
business 
activity through 
the use of ‘on-
line’ 
technology to 
support 
business 
growth 
harnessing 
greater 
entrepreneurial 
culture and 
increased 
start-ups

We have been working closely with 
Onlincolnshire to progress Phase 3 of 
the Lincolnshire Broadband Rollout and 
have been working closely with a few 
businesses to achieve faster upload 
and download speeds. We also worked 
closely with a major local business, 
who had no connection to a fast 
broadband network and seek 
assurances from Onlincolnshire and BT 
that connection after years of broken 
promises would be delivered. Im please 
to say that this work has now been 
completed and that we have reduced a 
petal threat of that business leaving the 
borough.

2.8 Explore the opportunity to 
create collaboration 
through a business 
ambassador programme to 
support areas of funding, 
business support, inward 
investment and workforce 
development

Greater 
awareness and 
understanding 
of the 
borough’s 
business offer 
— identifying 
interventions 
that champion 
business 
investment and 
enable 
business 
retention and 
growth

This work is ongoing but do have a 
nucleus of businesses looking to 
support this aim. Meeting will convene 
in 2019 after the distraction of Brexit. 

2.0 Support business development & growth of new and existing businesses2.0 Support business development & growth of new and existing businesses

Page 18



   
   2.8   As previously mentioned significant amount of intervention is already being 

delivered to underpin growth by different council services including Building 
Control, Development Management, Licensing, Forward Plans and our 
Housing teams. This priority 3.0 looks to align to this activity to maximise 
economic benefits and accelerate growth.  

   2.9  The final priority 4.0 looks to further support the Place agenda and add value 
wider initiatives achieving an integrated approach. 

2.9 Support the development 
of a new website and 
social media channels 
providing responsive, 
relevant and appropriate 
information that meet the 
needs of our business 
community, now and in the 
future

Greater access 
to service 
areas for 
support, 
guidance, 
procurement of 
services , etc.

ThinkBostonUK.com has now been 
developed and launched together with 
an increased social media presence 
through Twitter and LinkedIn.

2.0 Support business development & growth of new and existing businesses2.0 Support business development & growth of new and existing businesses

3.0 Support housing growth and infrastructure development

Acti
on 
No.

Project Outcome Progress against project

3.1 Work with colleagues and 
partners on the 
developments of initiatives 
that align to the South East 
Lincolnshire Local Plan

Greater 
developed 
linkages which 
improve 
business 
continuity, 
support and 
delivery 

Working closely with planing colleagues 
we are looking to develop a 
stakeholder group to help identify 
opportunities to encourage where 
appropriate development partnerships, 
help identity and remove barriers 
towards development in the borough 
etc. The Agents and Developers forum 
could act as a consultative body on key 
planning issues in the borough.

3.2 Work closely with partners 
to develop infrastructure 
projects that open up 
future investment 
opportunities 

Greater 
awareness of 
the investment 
offer and 
relocation 
potential

Leveraging support for a partnership 
approach to utilise opportunities around 
asset challenges the council along with 
the One Public Estate (OPE) agreed to 
develop a masterplan brief for the 
commissioning of consultancy services 
to undertake a viability, feasibility and 
design study for a 10 acre site known 
as PE21 West Street.

Page 19

http://ThinkBostonUK.com


CONSULTATION 

CMT 

4.0 Develop our tourism, heritage and cultural opportunities

Acti
on 
No.

Project Outcome Progress against project

4.1 Work with colleagues, 
partners and business to 
improve the visibility of 
Boston as a place to visit

Increased 
footfall within 
the town centre 
and visitor 
attractions

Working closely with colleagues and 
elected members across the authority 
developing a new “online’ presence 
creating a sense of place for the 
borough of Boston.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications as a result of this report. Officer engagement is 
included in current budgets and specific initiatives will be from the funding arising 
by being part of the 2018/19 business rates pilot in Lincolnshire. 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
There are no direct legal implications as a result of this report and ant specific 
project would be considered in detail in relation to powers to undertake the function. 
Equally each project would consider pertinent equality issues arising. 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report:- 

Page 20



APPENDIX A

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Boston Borough Council Economic Plan 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



EENNVVIIRROONNMMEENNTT  AANNDD  PPEERRFFOORRMMAANNCCEE  WWOORRKK  PPRROOGGRRAAMMMMEE  22001188  ––  22001199  
MMeeeettiinnggss::      TTuueessddaayy  11883300  hhoouurrss..  

  

Chairman:   Councillor Judith Skinner 
  

Date: Report Presenter Cabinet 
 

5 June 2018 

 

Crime and Disorder Annual Review / CCTV Statistics 17/18                    

Crime and Disorder Annual Review /    ASB Statistics 17/18               

CCTV Policy Annual Review 

  

Andrew Haw 
 

Ian Dunn  

 

27 June 2018 

 

17 July 2018 
 

           
         Markets Review  

 

Phil Perry 
5 Sept 2018 

 

4 September 2018 
           
         Update on Environmental Crime Enforcement Activity 
 

 

Matt Fisher 
 

3 Oct 2018 

 

8 November 2018 
 

 

Statement Of Community Consultation – Boston Alternative Energy 
Facility (Consultation) 
Waste Management Strategy for Lincolnshire          

 

  

Michelle Sacks 
 

Chris Allen 
 

 

28 Nov 2018 

 

8 January 2019 
 

 

         Economic Development 
 

Clive Gibbons 
 

9 Jan 2019 

 

5 March 2019 

          

‘Waste and Recycling Operational Procedures Policy’(following Inquiry) 

Possible -  ‘A’ Boards Draft Guidance Document 
  

  

C Allen 
S. Shay LCC 

 

3 April 2019 

 

16 April 2019 
 

 

  

Update on Pilgrim 20 / 20 
Possible -  ‘A’ Boards Draft Guidance Document 

  

PP  PPeerrrryy  
S. Shay LCC  

 

TBC June 2019 

 
Pending:     None. 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                                        See over for alternative Scrutiny working 

 

 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 2



 

 

 

Task and Finish Group Review(s): 

 None convened at time of issuing of agenda.  

 

Member Working Group(s): 

 None convened at time of issuing of agenda.  

 

Inquiry Day:  1. ‘Waste and Recycling Operational Procedures Policy’     14 January 2019   

Member Briefing:   none scheduled  

2019 / 2020 – WORK PROGRAMME:     

Environmental Building: 
Purpose:   To understand how effective the Council is driving and promoting development which is both environmentally friendly and sustainable for 

both domestic and commercial buildings.  How effective is national policy and legislative framework at supporting the Council.  Does the 
Council drive innovation in the construction sector.  What measures are in place to monitor local and national construction companies – 
how does Boston benchmark with others. 

 

Environmental Procurement: 
Purpose:   To understand how effective the Council is with environmentally friendly and sustainable purchasing and procurement arrangements.  How  

effective is the Council at supporting local business in helping to reduce its carbon footprint. 
 
Phase 1:    First meeting of the new municipal year – reports on both of the above based on the Council’s existing procedures and how they 

benchmarked  with others in broader terms.  Committee to determine whether existing policies and procedures were up to standard or if 
further in-depth scrutiny to improve the procedures would be beneficial through a Task and Finish Review (either jointly on or singular). 

P
age 24


	Agenda
	B. MINUTES
	1 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POSITION STATEMENT
	2 WORK PROGRAMME

